

UNIFORM DIVISION OF INCOME FOR TAX PURPOSES ACT

1 SECTION 1. As used in this Act, unless the context otherwise
2 requires:

3 (a) "Business income" means income arising from transactions
4 and activity in the regular course of the taxpayer's trade or busi-
5 ness and includes income from tangible and intangible property
6 if the acquisition, management, and disposition of the property
7 constitute integral parts of the taxpayer's regular trade or busi-
8 ness operations.

Comment

This definition refers to "the" taxpayer's trade or business as if he had one business. It is not intended by this language to require a taxpayer having several "businesses" to use the same allocation and apportionment methods for the businesses. The language permits separate treatment of different businesses of a single taxpayer. Section 18 clearly permits separate treatment.

Income from the disposition of property used in a trade or business of the taxpayer is includible within the meaning of business income.

Dividend income from a subsidiary is not dealt with in this definition. If the parent's commercial domicile is in the taxing state, Section 7 allocates the income to that state and the income of the subsidiary producing the dividend is not necessarily apportioned. If the parent company has a commercial domicile in another state but some or all of a subsidiary's income is properly apportioned to this state, a tax on the income of the subsidiary will be obtained by the apportionment formula. Section 18 would permit different treatment of the income of a subsidiary if necessary to reflect fairly the business activity of the taxpayer in the state.

9 (b) "Commercial domicile" means the principal place from
10 which the trade or business of the taxpayer is directed or managed.

Comment

The phrase "directed or managed" is not intended to permit both the state where the board of directors meets and the state where the company is managed to claim the commercial domicile. The phrase "directed or managed" is intended as two words serving the same end; not as two separate concepts.

- 11 (c) "Compensation" means wages, salaries, commissions and
12 any other form of remuneration paid to employees for personal
13 services.

COMMENT

This definition is derived from the Model Unemployment Compensation Act which has been adopted in all states.

Compensation paid to "employees" becomes important in the payroll fraction in Section 15. If a corporation is employed to provide personal services, Section 18 may be used to include compensation paid to corporations in the fraction if exclusion of compensation paid to corporate agents fails to reflect adequately the business activity in the state.

- 14 (d) "Financial organization" means any bank, trust company,
15 savings bank, [industrial bank, land bank, safe deposit company],
16 private banker, savings and loan association, credit union, [co-
17 operative bank], investment company, or any type of insurance
18 company.

Comment

This definition and the definition of "public utility" in subsection (f) is necessary because section 2 excludes from allocation and apportionment under this act, income from these two types of business activity. The exclusion is proposed because some states have separate legislation for apportionment and allocation of income of such taxpayers. If not, and the state proposes to change subsection (2) so as to apply the act to such taxpayers this would not necessarily detract from the uniformity objective of this act.

19 (e) "Non-business income" means all income other than busi-
20 ness income.

21 (f) "Public utility" means [any business entity which owns or
22 operates for public use any plant, equipment, property, franchise,
23 or license for the transmission of communications, transportation
24 of goods or persons, or the production, storage, transmission, sale,
25 delivery, or furnishing of electricity, water, steam, oil, oil products
26 or gas.]

COMMENT

It is expected that "public utility" will be defined to include all taxpayers subject to the control of the state's regulatory bodies on the theory that separate legislation will provide for the apportionment and allocation of the income of such taxpayers.

Comment

See comment to the definition of "financial organization" for purpose of this definition. "Oil, oil products or gas" is not intended to be so restrictive as to ~~exclude~~ treat differently a public utility, if any, which transmits or ~~produces~~ produces "gas products". The essential point of the definition is the requirement that the business excluded by this definition and subsection 2 be a "public utility". Private transmission lines and private production or storage companies are thus not excluded.

27 (g) "Sales" means all gross receipts of the taxpayer not allo-
28 cated under sections 4 through 8 of this Act.

Comment

This all inclusive definition of sales is intended to make apportionable all income not allocated under Sections 4 through 8. As indicated in the comment to subsection (1)(a) income from sales of property used in trade or business is included in apportionable income.

29 (h) "State" means any state of the United States, the District
30 of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, any territory or
31 possession of the United States, and any foreign country or po-
32 litical subdivision thereof.

1 SECTION 2. Any taxpayer having income from business activity
2 which is taxable both within and without this state, other than
3 activity as a financial organization or public utility or the render-
4 ing of purely personal services by an individual, shall allocate
5 and apportion his net income as provided in this Act.

1 SECTION 3. For purposes of allocation and apportionment of
2 income under this Act, a taxpayer is taxable in another state if
3 (1) in that state he is subject to a net income tax, a franchise
4 tax measured by net income, a franchise tax for the privilege of
5 doing business, or a corporate stock tax, or (2) that state has
6 jurisdiction to subject the taxpayer to a net income tax regardless
7 of whether, in fact, the state does or does not.

Comment

This Section defines, for purposes of Section 2, where a taxpayer is "taxable both within and without this state". To bring this act into operation a taxpayer must have income from business activity and he must be taxable in this state and also in some other state.

Two tests are used by this Section to determine when a taxpayer is "taxable in another state". The first test is a fairly obvious one, the taxpayer is taxable in another state if he is actually subjected to the type of taxes listed in subparagraph (1).

The second test, in subparagraph (2) uses a "notional" or "Hypothetical" standard rather than an actual one. If another state could have, constitutionally, subjected the taxpayer to a tax on net income then the allocation and apportionment provisions of this act are applicable even though in actuality, the other state does not impose such a net income tax. Thus if a corporation has its commercial domicile in state X which has only a sales tax and no tax measured by net income, but that corporation has business activity in state A which has this apportionment act, State A must apportion the business income as provided in this Act so that some of it is allocated to State X even though as a result of the tax system of State X a portion of the business income escapes income taxation. This is required in order to treat the business of all states equally and in order to avoid having this act as a factor in inducing a state to have an income tax. If it does not wish to tax income, that is no reason for a state which does wish to tax income to attempt to obtain more than its share of taxable income.

It should be noted that in subsection (1)(h) the word "state" is defined broadly enough to include a foreign country. This means that "taxable in another state" within subsection 3 may mean a foreign country. The apportioning state, however, need consider only whether the foreign country "could have" taxed the income under the constitution of the United States if it had been a state.

While subparagraph (1) lists several types of taxes which might be actually in effect in another state, the reference in subparagraph (2) ~~xxxxxxxxxxxxxx~~ only to a "net income" tax is not intended to be more restricted in the hypothetical tax than the section is with respect to an actual tax.

1 SECTION 4. Rents and royalties from real or tangible personal
2 property, capital gains, interest, dividends, or patent or copy-
3 right royalties, to the extent that they constitute non-business
4 income, shall be allocated as provided in sections 5 through 8
5 of this Act.

Comment

This section is the ~~general~~ general section on "allocating" non-business income to a state ~~just~~ just as section 9 is the general section on apportionment of business income. Section 2 refers to an allocation and an apportionment of "net income". In "allocating" non-business income to a state, the states concerned with this allocation may desire to allocate the expenses properly attributable to non-business but allocable income in the same way that income is allocated so that these expenses will not be involved in determining net income from business activity where apportionment is used. Section 18 of this Code empowers the state to make this adjustment if it wishes.

1 SECTION 5. (a) Net rents and royalties from real property lo-
2 cated in this state are allocable to this state.

3 (b) Net rents and royalties from tangible personal property
4 are allocable to this state:

5 (1) if and to the extent that the property is utilized in this
6 state, or

7 (2) in their entirety if the taxpayer's commercial domicile
8 is in this state and the taxpayer is not organized under the laws
9 of or taxable in the state in which the property is utilized.

10 (c) The extent of utilization of tangible personal property in
11 a state is determined by multiplying the rents and royalties by
12 a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days of
13 physical location of the property in the state during the rental or
14 royalty period in the taxable year and the denominator of which
15 is the number of days of physical location of the property every-
16 where during all rental or royalty periods in the taxable year. If
17 the physical location of the property during the rental or royalty
18 period is unknown or unascertainable by the taxpayer tangible
19 personal property is utilized in the state in which the property
20 was located at the time the rental or royalty payer obtained
21 possession.

Comment

Rents from

/Mobile tangible property are to be allocated in accordance with Section 5(c). This subsection apportions the rents by a fraction based on the number of days in the state on the assumption that the rents are generally based on time of use. If the rent itself is calculated on the basis of some factor other than time, Section 18 would permit a state to substitute a fraction based on this substitute factor. Thus if the rent for ~~xxxxxxx~~ drilling rig is calculated on the basis of number of feet drilled, the "extent of utilization" in this state might also be determined on the basis of a fraction which uses "feet drilled" rather than days in the state.

1 SECTION 6. (a) Capital gains and losses from sales of real
2 property located in this state are allocable to this state.

3 (b) Capital gains and losses from sales of tangible personal
4 property are allocable to this state if

5 (1) the property had a situs in this state at the time of the
6 sale, or

7 (2) the taxpayer's commercial domicile is in this state and
8 the taxpayer is not taxable in the state in which the property had
9 a situs.

10 (c) Capital gains and losses from sales of intangible personal
11 property are allocable to this state if the taxpayer's commercial
12 domicile is in this state.

1 SECTION 7. Interest and dividends are allocable to this state if
2 the taxpayer's commercial domicile is in this state.

1 SECTION 8. (a) Patent and copyright royalties are allocable
2 to this state:

3 (1) if and to the extent that the patent or copyright is
4 utilized by the payer in this state, or

5 (2) if and to the extent that the patent or copyright is
6 utilized by the payer in a state in which the taxpayer is not tax-
7 able and the taxpayer's commercial domicile is in this state.

8 (b) A patent is utilized in a state to the extent that it is em-
9 ployed in production, fabrication, manufacturing, or other proc-
10 essing in the state or to the extent that a patented product is
11 produced in the state. If the basis of receipts from patent royal-
12 ties does not permit allocation to states or if the accounting pro-
13 cedures do not reflect states of utilization, the patent is utilized in
14 the state in which the taxpayer's commercial domicile is located.

15 (c) A copyright is utilized in a state to the extent that print-
16 ing or other publication originates in the state. If the basis of re-
17 cepts from copyright royalties does not permit allocation to
18 states or if the accounting procedures do not reflect states of
19 utilization, the copyright is utilized in the state in which the tax-
20 payer's commercial domicile is located.

1 SECTION 9. All business income shall be apportioned to this
2 state by multiplying the income by a fraction, the numerator of
3 which is the property factor plus the payroll factor plus the sales
4 factor, and the denominator of which is three.

1 SECTION 10. The property factor is a fraction, the numerator
2 of which is the average value of the taxpayer's real and tangible
3 personal property owned or rented and used in this state during
4 the tax period and the denominator of which is the average value

5 of all the taxpayer's real and tangible personal property owned
6 or rented and used during the tax period.

Comment

The property to be included in the numerator and denominator is business property producing the income to be apportioned. Allocated property under sections 5 through 8 should be excluded in constructing the fraction.

1 SECTION 11. Property owned by the taxpayer is valued at its
2 original cost. Property rented by the taxpayer is valued at eight
3 times the net annual rental rate. Net annual rental rate is the
4 annual rental rate paid by the taxpayer less any annual rental
5 rate received by the taxpayer from sub-rentals.

COMMENT

This section is admittedly arbitrary in using original cost rather than depreciated cost, and in valuing rented property as eight times the annual rental. This approach is justified because the act does not impose a tax, nor prescribe the depreciation allowable in computing the tax, but merely provides a basis for division of the taxable income among the several states. The use of original cost obviates any differences due to varying methods of depreciation, and has the advantage that the basic figure is readily ascertainable from the taxpayer's books. No method of valuing the property would probably be universally acceptable.

In any situation where it is impossible to ascertain original cost, Section 18 may be used to determine a fair value for such property. Section 18 may also be necessary to aid in determining "net annual rental value" of tangible personal property where the actual rent is so related to services that the part attributable to the object is difficult to determine.

reasonable rental rate
Section 18 may also be used to determine a ~~value~~ for this fraction where the actual rent is zero or nominal such as may be the case where a local government in attempting to induce an industry to come to a community supplies the property at a nominal rental.

1 SECTION 12. The average value of property shall be determined
2 by averaging the values at the beginning and ending of the tax
3 period but the [tax administrator] may require the averaging of
4 monthly values during the tax period if reasonably required to
5 reflect properly the average value of the taxpayer's property.

1 SECTION 15. The sales factor is a fraction, the numerator of
2 which is the total sales of the taxpayer in this state during the
3 tax period, and the denominator of which is the total sales of the
4 taxpayer everywhere during the tax period.

Comment

The sales to be included in the fraction are only the sales which produce business income. Sales which produce "capital gains" *are* under section 6 and are to be allocated rather than apportioned. ~~should be included.~~

"Total sales" means "net sales" after discounts and returns .

1 SECTION 13. The payroll factor is a fraction, the numerator of
2 which is the total amount paid in this state during the tax period
3 by the taxpayer for compensation, and the denominator of which
4 is the total compensation paid everywhere during the tax period.

Comment

Payroll attributable to management or maintenance or otherwise allocable to non-business property should be excluded from the fraction. //

Payroll "paid" should be determined by the normal accounting methods of the business so that if the taxpayer "accrues" such matters the payroll should be treated as "paid" for purpose of this section.

1 SECTION 14. Compensation is paid in this state if:
2 (a) the individual's service is performed entirely within the
3 state; or
4 (b) the individual's service is performed both within and with-
5 out the state, but the service performed without the state is inci-
6 dental to the individual's service within the state; or
7 (c) some of the service is performed in the state and (1) the
8 base of operations or, if there is no base of operations, the place
9 from which the service is directed or controlled is in the state, or
10 (2) the base of operations or the place from which the service is
11 directed or controlled is not in any state in which some part of
12 the service is performed, but the individual's residence is in this
13 state.

COMMENT

This section is derived from the Model Unemployment Compensation Act. This is the same figure which will be used by taxpayers for unemployment compensation purposes.

1 SECTION 16. Sales of tangible personal property are in this
2 state if:
3 (a) the property is delivered or shipped to a purchaser, other
4 than the United States government, within this state regardless
5 of the f.o.b. point or other conditions of the sale; or
6 (b) the property is shipped from an office, store, warehouse,
7 factory, or other place of storage in this state and (1) the pur-
8 chaser is the United States government or (2) the taxpayer is
9 not taxable in the state of the purchaser.

The phrase "delivered or shipped to a purchaser" in this state includes shipments, at the designation of the purchaser to a person in this state such as designating, while a shipment is enroute, the ultimate recipient.

Sales to the United States are treated separately. It is thought that this is justified because sales to the United States are not necessarily attributable to a market existing in the state to which the goods are originally shipped. This different treatment may also be justified because, if the goods are defense or war materials, it may be impossible to determine whether the goods ever come to rest in the state due to use of coded delivery instructions.

The section does not specify how sales from a subsidiary in the state to an out-of-state parent such as a marketing corporation who thereupon redirects the goods back into the state, should be treated. It may be necessary to use section 18 to make a fair representation of the business income in this situation.

1 SECTION 17. Sales, other than sales of tangible personal prop-
2 erty, are in this state if:
3 (a) the income-producing activity is performed in this state;
4 or
5 (b) the income-producing activity is performed both in and
6 outside this state and a greater proportion of the income-producing
7 activity is performed in this state than in any other state, based
8 on costs of performance.

1 SECTION 18. If the allocation and apportionment provisions of
2 this Act do not fairly represent the extent of the taxpayer's busi-
3 ness activity in this state, the taxpayer may petition for or the
4 [tax administrator] may require, in respect to all or any part of
5 the taxpayer's business activity, if reasonable:
6 (a) separate accounting;
7 (b) the exclusion of any one or more of the factors;
8 (c) the inclusion of one or more additional factors which will
9 fairly represent the taxpayer's business activity in this state; or
10 (d) the employment of any other method to effectuate an
11 equitable allocation and apportionment of the taxpayer's income.

COMMENT

It is anticipated that this act will be made a part of the income tax acts of the several states. For that reason, this section does not spell out the procedure to be followed in the event of a disagreement between the taxpayer and the tax administrator. The income tax acts of each state presumably outline the procedure to be followed.

Section 18 is intended as a broad authority, within the principle of apportioning business income fairly among the states which have contact with the income, to the tax administrator to vary the apportionment formula and to vary the system of allocation where the ~~xxx~~ provisions of the act do not fairly represent the extent of the taxpayer's business activity in the state. The phrases in section 18(d) do not foreclose the use of one method from some business activity and a different method for a different business activity. Neither does the phrase "method" limit the administrator to substituting factors in the formula. The phrase means any other method of fairly representing the extent of the taxpayer's business activity in the state.

(No comments are proposed for Sections 19(uniformity section), 20(short title), 21(repealer section) and 22(effective date)